THE STORY OF SANDGATE

[Eirst noted as a guard post in the thirteenth century,
Sandgate's history really begins with the building of the
castle in 1539 on the orders of Henry VIII. It formed part of
a chain of defensive forts, together with Walmer, Deal and
Sandown, constructed at a time of possible invasion by Spain.
It had a keep, a gatehouse and three towers connected by
galleries, all enclosed within a stout wall. The complete
building accounts in the British Museum recount that the
workmen came from far and wide and were housed in tents.Sltone
was taken from the beach and the lately dismantled local
priories, 147,000 bricks were used and the total cost was
£5,544. It housed a captain and a garrison but was never
attacked, save by the sea which has done much damage over the

P visched
centuries. Queen Elizabeth resteécﬁhefe on a progress through / 1
N

Kent. Close by there was a Watch House which sheltered the
excisemen in their age-long battle with the smugglers.

Jacob des Bouveries' estate map of 1697 showed an empty
stretch of coast. 1In 1773 a boatbuilder, Fabian Clayton
Wilson, took leases of the beachy ground from Lord Radnor and
put up some 30 cottages for his workmen, some still standing
at the bottom of KSandgate Hill. The business flourisheqd,
providing 7 28-gun frigates for the American Revolutionary
War, launched from the beach, which was covered with timbersg
and boats on the stocks. Other shipwrights followZed and the
trade continued for nearly 100 years, ending with the rowing
boats made by Dick Graves in the old black boathouse (eastern
end of the Riviera).

In 1794 during the war with France the War Department
bought 230 acres at Shorne Cliffe which was to become one of
the foremost military establishments in the Kingdom. 1In 1803
there was a very real danger of invasion by Napoleon:; 120,000
troops and 2,000 ships were rumoured to be massing in the
Channel ports. KkThe Royal Military Canal and the line of o g b
Martello towers were built, four on the heights above Folkesstsdhe.
The Castle also was adapted to this pattern. Every able
bodied man and every boat was listed and evacuation plans
made. General Sir John Moore commanded the Light Infantry
Brigade at Shorncliffe, training the men in tactics of mobility and
speed which were to be so useful in Spain. Stout officers




SANDGATE 2.

were made to run up the hill to éthe Camp. The General rented
Sir John Shaw's house while his mother and sister were in York
Cottage (Castle Rd.). He went on to his command in Spain and

a hero's death at Corunna. There is a memofrial to him on the
Esplanade. Napoleon's invasion plans were defeated by the

Channel and the Camp land returned to pasture.

The village meanwhile was growing as a small and select
resort attracting genteel visitors. Purday's Guide of 1823
enlarges on its advantages, the sheltered aspect, salubrious
air, hot and cold seawater baths and numerous bathing machines.
Thomas Purday started a business in 1799 which became the
centre of the village's social life. It included a circulating
library, fancy goods, a reading room and musical entertain-
ments in the summer. Here the young John Gough used to read
to customers. Son of the village schoolmﬁétress and a former
solder, he later emigrated to A#merica and became a well-known
temperance orator. He described the village in his auto-
biography, the daily coaches passing through on their way to
London, the annual fair on the green featuring a pig-faced
lady, donkey races and merry-go-rounds. ¥There was also a
darker side to village life - the sémuggling gang with their
coded signals at night and two murders on the beach.

William Wilberforce came for several summers and Mrs.
Siddons enjoyed the sea bathing. Brick villas used as lodging
houses were being built and also a resident gentry class
emerging. Two substantial mansions were ergsFSgML{Eellevue by
Lord Darnley of‘Cobham Hall in 1806 anq the;uther by Henry
Dawkindg{a%vtﬂe'%%her end of the villaéec both having beautiful
gardens planted with choice shrubs. 1In 1814 the first school &
started, 1d. per week was charged. At first housed in'réﬁégﬂéMEﬁii{
rooms by the Castle, a permanent home was provided by charitable Lo

funds (later the Artillery Drill Hall, now the Sea Cadets HQ).
J v et
Wilberforce had lamented the lack of a church. In 1816
there was a Methodist chapel (site %f Whit? Court) and in 1822
classical
Lord Darnley provided a handsome[Chapel-of—Ease in his own
grounds, designed by George Repton. The Congregational Chapel

(1883) is now the Little Theatre (FHODS) .
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But there was no controlling authority and the village
was not a healthy place, judging by the Rammell report produced
in 1849 with the co-operation of the inhabitants. There was
a small water company in Wilberforce Rd. but many houses still
used well water. The drains were appalling, many discharging
on the beach and 60 houses had no drains at all. There was no

rubbish collection to deal with the 23 dunghills and 16 piggeries.

The main road was the responsibility of the Turnpike Trust
which had a toll gate on Sandgate Hill till 1877, but the side
roads were not made up and there was no street lighting. The
1840s were a time of reforqénd Sandgate was chosen as a model
of what could be done. A Local Board of Health with nine
members and powers to raise money and enact byelaws was elected.
Its minutes illustrate the process of reform - a new pure
water supply from Honeywood Springs provided, water closets
and drains installed and inspected, gas laid on, muddy yards
paved and nuisances inspected. The Medical Officer of Health
wrote an encouraging book "Sandgate as a Residence for Invalids"
though unfortunately a year later the village suffered an
outbreak of cholera causing 48 deaths. This was meticulously
investigated and the new drains were found to be at faulgyf
badly laid and jointed with clay.

The Rev. Sebastian Gambier was the first Chairman of the
Local Board. The:ﬂhapei:had:becomeftGefsmaii"and~was“repfaced
Church activities were important: penny readings, a lending
library and clothing club. The Chapel had become too small
and was replaced by St. Paul's in 1849, designed by S.S.
Teulon. The samrarchitect was used by Sir John Bligh who had
inherited Bellevue from his father and rebu1lt(}t£%§ Enbrook
Lodge, a comfortable country house WththlS daughter, the
Countess of Chichester. inherited. James Morris, a wealthy
Governor of the Bank of England and noted local philanthropist
had bought Encombe. There was a Dispensary for the poor and
the Sandgate Workingmen's Institute provided opportunites for
further education.

In 1855 the Government was recruiting mercenaries to
serve in the British German Legion for use in the Crimean War

and 3,000 men were stationed at Shorncliffe in newly construc-
ted wooden huts facing a wide parade ground. The villagers'

welcome was warm at first, but cooled somewhat with frequent
cases of theft, drunkenness and deserftion. The men, who had
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been visited by Queen Victoria and Prince Albert, were sent to
the Crimea a few months before peace was declared. Their
places were taken by British troops and the Camp has been in
use ever since. Later Royal visitors were the Kaiser, Colonel-
in-Chief of the Royal Dragoons and the Prince of Wales., the
future Edward VII. New buildings were put up in 1891. The
names of the regiments stationed there would be a roll call of
the British army and it was invaluable in two world wars, both
for training and for troops waiting to embark for the Continent.

The presence of so many men of course affected village
life. Wives were billetted there and the troops would come
down in the evenings to relay in Sandgate's many pubs and
beershops. Rigden's "Bricklayers Arms" was enlarged to become
the popular "Alhambra Mueic Hall" with singers, dancers and
performing dogs on the programme. 1t was later Maltby's
"Mansion of Mirth" and then Sandgate's only cinema "The Rex"
which closed in 1948. There was a house of refuge for pros-
titutes, the girls being mostly laundry workers from Cheriton.
There were two places where men could relax without the temp-

tation of alcohol: Miss Lucy Papillon's Soldiers' Institute (UQZ

and the John Gough Coffee Tavern,[opened by John Gough himself Z/k4a40nué
in 1879 on a visit from America amid scenes of tumultuous F&LL€>
enthusiasm

There was a volunteer Fire Brigade at least since 1859.
This was reorganised in 1882 with 10 men, 2 officers and a new
fire engine, the latter to be kept in the Fire Station, a- UTte
distinctive building in the High S*treet, erected through the
generosity of the Misses Reilly, nieces and heirs of James
Morris. Young men could also join the Artillery Volunteers,®
housed in the old school with smart uniforms, regular rifle
drilL%nd reviews at Woolwich and Dover. They were commanded
by Capt. (later Col.) Fynmore.

In the mid-nineteenth century Sandgate's population
increased from 1,200 to 2,000. It had become a lively shopping
centre as the journey into Folkestone in the jolting horse
busses was uncomfortable and slow. &There was now a great
range of food shops, military taigors and bootmakers, three
linen drapers, five milliners, two chemists, a bank and a
newspaper. Miss Purday went bankrupt and her stock was sold
at auction.
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Sandgate should have had its own rail#way line according
to plans made by the South Eastern Railway in the 1870s which
hoped to cut ten minutes from the London to Paris journey by
building a branch line from Hythe to the harbour. This would
have entailed crossing the Broadway (High St.), knocking down
the Castle and running trains along the coast via the gardens
of Radnor Cliff. The line was made as far as Seabrook but the
rest proved too expensive. The Castle was saved and became a
museum of the South African War - and an air raid shelter in
World War II. The South kEastern made a horse tramway from
Hythe to the bottom of Sandgate Hill in 1891 and alighting
passengers could take the new water-powered l1lift to the top of
the Leas. 1In summer there was the "toast rackKk"”, an open
carriage. 1In World War I the horses were called up and their
places taken by frequently rebellious mules. Neither 1lift nor

tram survived competition from the motor busses.

The old school had become overcrowded and a new building
designed by Philip Hardwick, was given by James Morris on land
provided by Lord Radnor. HThe neo-Gothic building, now living
accommodation:Zstill stands opposite St. Paul's Church.
kAfter the 1870 Education ACt which eventually led to schooling
for all children, Sagndgate School remained Church of England.
For some years it had the best attendance record in England
and a notable headmaster in Arnold Ulyett who was keenly
inteérested in scientific education. May Day was celebrated
with a maypole, a May Queen dressed in white and Friar Tuck.
During World War 11 the school closed and Mr. and Mrs. Neale,
the joint heads, accompanied the children to Wales. After
their return the Kent County Council took over financial
control. There was little room for new pupils when the Golden
Valley area was added and the school moved to new buildings in
Coolinge Lane.

In 1894 the Local Board's functions were taken over by
the Sandgate Urban District Council. By this time sanitary
conditions were good and the death rate low. Folkestone now
voted to extend its boundaries and annex Sandgate. The village
resisted fiercely, instandﬁhcing Folkestone's profligacy with
a library and artisans’ dwellings,but Sandgate itself was in
financial trouble because of the cost of keeping up the sea
wall, repeatedly damaged by floods. The wall supported the




SANDGATE 6.

main road but the KCC refused to accept responsibilkity.
Eventually after a long legal battle which went to the House

of Lords, Sandgate won and could recoup its costs, an important
decision for other seaside towns. It stayed independent

till 1934 when it was merged with Shepwsay. the Folkestorie

:J%Wgﬁ Beurhg Council and is now part of Shgbway.

In 1891 there was a dramatic rescue of 27 sailors at
Seabrook from the wrecked ship the "Benvenue" on its way to
Australia by the volunteer crew of the Sandgate lifeboat,
which had been presented by Hannah Rothschild. The wreck was
a danger to shipping till Trinity House decided to blow it up
in spite of local protests. 1In 1893 the western end of Sandgate
suffered a landslide after an abnormal amount ég_rain. 72
houses were destroyed or damaged)though there was no loss of
life. This was a disaster for the village and loss of trade
for the lodging houses. A national appeal raised £9,000 to bg
spe@it on repairs and a deep drainage scheme for the unstable
area. The Vicar, the Rev. Russell Wakefield, did
much to support the community at this time.

In 1891 a convalescent home for slum children was opened,
the Beach Rocks. The clergyman who started it, the Rev. James
Jones was accused of fraud and died a broken man. The Government Y
bought the builffding (site of /L ) and turned it into a home R AR
1

,
o~

for soldiers wounded in the South African War.

Sandgate became a centre of literary life when H.G. Wells
came in 1898 to recover his health, first to 2 Beach Cottages
then to Arnold House, Castle Rd. He then decided to build
himself a home, Spade House, designed by C.F. Voysey and built
by William Dunk. He stayed for ten years, became a Borough
Magistrate and wrote some of his best books there such as
"Kipps" and "Tono Bungay". i?ﬁé%éeé [[8dy! "The Sea Lady"
describes the impact of a mermaid's arrival on a respectable
Sazndgate family. "Little Wars" sets out the rules of an
elaboag}g war game played all over theﬂhouse and garden with
his tew young sons. With his wife Jawme, Wells entertained
mary-many literary and political figures - Henry James, Shaw,
Conrad, the Webbs, Ford Madox Ford and local MP Sir Edward
Sassoon. Other literary residents were Florence Warden and

the flamboyant Mrs. B.M. Croker, both popular novelists.
ofogety- Wioekae bt tk968 1 viag -dnm@adepro L1t .Brédise thaeely
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Jocelyn Brooke (1908-1966) was a member of the Brooke family
of local wine merchants. His three volumes of autobiography
"The Orchid Trilogy", Proustian in flavour, describes his
childhood in Radnor Cliff and botanising excursions along the

Lower Road, as well as life as an army prlvate )\sc/{
(

In September 1914 Shorncliffe Camp took in 20,000 recruits
destined to go to France. They were billetted all over the
area and many had to sleep in tents, coming and going in quick
succession. The Beach Rocks became the Bevan Nursing Home
with an open air ward for septic wounds. Canadian accents
were heard everywhere. 46 young men of Sandgate were killed
including Lance/Cpl. Cotter who died in action and received
the VC. One bomb fell on the site of the War Memorial in a
raid that killed 60 in Folkestone.

World War 11 was very different. Though evacuees arrived
during the deceptive peace of the phony war, Sandgate becamewkrk C)k
Britain's front line of defence when France fedl. The beach W .
o €
A

was mined, there was barbed wire alongmthemEsp&a7éde and / ¢ ves

machine gun posts in the cliffs. This, together with the Héme
Guard, were to turn back the might of Hitler's troops, so near
across the Channel. It was rumoured that the 17th Infantry
Division was to invade between Hythe and Sandgate to avoid the
gundd batteries at the harbour. Some three quarters of the
population had left, shops and houses were deserted and the
school closed. The Chichester Hall housed the ARP, RkEnbrook
the Fire Service and the Castle the Home Guard. There was
damage from mines along thqlgigi?nade from bombs (Chichester
Rd., Prospect Place, Coastgug@d Cottages) and shells (Star &
Garter Home, school and church). Great refief was felt when
the French coast was freed but then the Vlis started, many
being destroyed in the skies above Sandgate.

Life since the war, as everywhere, is very different. The
old family houses are di¥ided and blocks of flats stand along
the sea front. The High Street is choked with traffic and the
trade of the small shops has gone to the supermarket. Spade
House is an old people’'s home and {Encombe is a vacant site
with a housing development in the grounds.
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‘ixtract from éarl? guidebook about the
purday's Library,

attractions of sandgate.

early visitors, Mrs.
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‘qohn Gough's account,
giddons and William Wilberforce.
How did the village start? 1539 Henry

The Watch House.
an Clayton Wilson and others.

yI11I's castle, British

Museum accounts.
1773 Arrival of poathuilder Fabi

Cottages built for workers.
1794 prurchase of 230 acres of land by the War Department at

shorne Cliff. Britain at bay. invasion precautions.

Alteration
to Castle.

"amp left empty till 1855.
3+4000 soldiers and how they affected

Alhambra music hall.
House of Refuge for

sir John Moore and the Light Brigade.
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in the Crimean War.
village, traders, beer shops and pubs,
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1849 Rammell Report, a key document. Present state, bad sani-

tation, no lightingy drains, water.

1850 Local Board of Health established and its activities

(drawn from minutes).1900s attempt at takeover by Folkestone.
@f&Local Board now Urban District Council. 1934 merged into

Folkestone Borough Council, now part of Shepway.
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The ?hurch, Lord Darnley's chapel, St. Pauls. Role of clergy-
man important in village life.
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Brooke, Mrs. B.M. Croker ' .

The 20th cent i
tury. S. in WW II. Loss of identity, lccal shops

re '
glaced by antique dealers. Voluntary activéh¥Scout Se
Cadets, purchase of 01 i i | , - " :
cadet d Fire Station by Heritage Trust agbnﬁgaXl-CYfL““gw
lchester Hall, FHODS, Rowing Club , .

Saga now proceeding with new HQO. 1,000 new jobs

e




)%ourist trade still active, pubs, some excellent restaurants.
Above all, residents and visitors appreciate what they have
always enjoyed - Sandgate's unique natural advantages, the
curve of the bay, the wooded backdrop and the shining sea.



FIRST NOTED as a guard post in the 13th
century, Sandgate's history really began
when Henry V111 ordered the building of
the castle in 1539 - along with those at
Walmer, Deal and Sandown - in case of
invasion by Spain.

Nearly 300 years later six Martello
Towers (fortifications with canons) were
built as coastal defences at Sandgate, being
among many along England's south coast
to check the potential invasion by
Napolean - which never materialised.

These days Sandgate, which snuggles up
against Folkestone as part of Kent's Garden
Coast. spends a lot less time trying to keep
people out and much more time going about
the business of attracting visitors.

A haven for collectors, with its many
varied and interesting bow-fronted old
antiques shops along the high street,
Sandgate is fast becoming known as one
of the leading centres for collectables in
southern England.

Many of the items now being sought in
the antiques shops were new when the
author H.G.Wells had a house built in
Sandgate. He lived there between 1900
and 1910 and he clearly found the area
condusive to writing, producing some of
his most valuable work there, including
"Kipps', "The History of Mr Polly' and "The
First Men in the Moon.'

He and wife Jane entertained many liter-
ary figures at their home, Spade House,
including Armold Bennett, Henry James,

J M.Barrie, Joseph Conrad and George
Bernard Shaw.
Although Sandgate owes much of its

ADVERTISE IN ‘KENT PROFILE’

Sandééte no longer f

popularity and unique atmosphere to things
past - and the late Georgian and Victorian
buildings, with their fine examples of
balconied stucco terraces and traditional
Kent weather boarding continually remind
you of this - the present and future are
very much on the minds of the people that
live there.

The insurance and travel company,
Saga,
has built a striking new office development
which accommodates six hundred employees,
bringing new life and employment, while
more than £1 million is being invested in
the regeneration of the lower Leas Coastal
park, located along the Sandgate to
Folkestone seafront.

It will include formal gardens, play area,
wildspace and sculpture and the project is

Preservation
and chips

THERE IS added enjoyment when you sit
down to a plate of freshly-prepared fish and
chips in The Little Fish Shop, close to
Sandgate High Street. You are also supporting
an excellent example of urban regeneration.

The weatherboarded building with a
higgeldy-piggeldy roof sits comfortably in
the 18th century setting of Sandgate, but it
is nearly as new as the spectacular glass
headquarters of the Saga Group, a stone's
throw away in Military Road.

There has been a fish and chip shop on the
site for many, many years but it is only in

- 0181 776 7077

earing invasion

the seven years that Brian Armon has been
involved that a quiet revolution has taken
place. Brian respects the charm of old
Sandgate but believes that people must be
able to get their food in beautiful condition
in comfortable surroundings.

He is an enthusiastic builder as much as
he is a caterer, so he enjoyed the challenge
of preserving the feel of the high street
with the efficiency of a modern business.

Walk through the lower restaurant and up
the stairs to the 'cottage' restaurant and you
step over a great baulk of ancient timber. It
has been there since the early 18th century
and could have stopped the project in its
tracks. The preservation enthusiasts were
ready to get tough if the beam were cut but
fractional adjustments to the levels of the
staircase overcame that problem.

Similarly, some digging and filling
ensured that the walk-in refrigerated room,
the massive new kitchen and elegant patio
were created from the decaying properties
surrounding the original fish shop.

Brian Armon is not competing with
nouvelle cuisine or designer dishes. He
knows that 100 people at a time could easily
fill his restaurant, enjoying a dozen
variations on fish and chips at attractive
prices, with all the traditional extras of the
meal - like mushy peas and pickled onions.
Home-made sweets include spotted dick,
meringue and creme brulee. There is beer,
select wines and lots of tea and bread and
butter to remind customers how good
traditional English fare can be.

Qutside and in, the Little Fish Shop is a
great example of the taste of England.
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THE
SANDGATE SOIL SLIP

—————— 35 > {2} < A ———

TOM MALTEY 'S GUIDE.

T ————— 35 o {2 < e ———

PON your arrival at Sandgate Station, and enquiring the
road to the ruins, any man on the station, from the
courteous Station-master, Mr. Caudell, to the boy who
collects tickets will direct you to “Keep to the left.” Presuming you
are here met by a Guide to whom the locality is known, he will
first—at short distance from the Station—point out to you a vacated
residence known as Littlebourne Lodge. In reality Littlebourne
Lodge has borne a great deal, and is considerably dislodged, the
walls and ceilings being badly cracked. Turning up an opening on
the left you are shown Cheriton Cliff Villa. The doors of this
domicile are owing to the Landslip rendered unfit for opening and
shutting, and furniture and goods were at considerable risk lowered
to the ground from the windows. On the sea front opposite you'll
notice a badly damaged groyne. Re-crossing the road and still
keeping to the left you reach a terrace of seven houses, known as
Sunnyside. The tenants here mainly depended on summer
boarders for maintenance and support, but owing to severe damage
to the houses—both inside and out—it is scarcely likely, unless
repairs are rapidly proceeded with, that the usually comfortable and
charming apartments therein will this year be occupied by visitors.

At the back of Sunnyside Terrace you may be shown one of the
gardens belonging to Tavenor Bros., fruiterers and florists, of
Sandgate. This garden is in a generally upheaved condition.
Adjacent stands Wellington Place, situated on an elevation at the
rear of Wellington Terrace. The houses on the Terrace and in
Wellington Place are also deserted by the tenants. The apartments
in Wellington and Gloucester Terraces have for years been among
those most sought after by visitors, and the calamity means a terrible
loss to their late tenants. Keeping to the left of Wellington Place you

reach the Clarendon Inn, which, notwithstanding the dilapidated
condition of the houses on either side, stands tolerably firm in
comparison. Business, up to the time of writing, is still carried on,
though very great inconvenience has been caused to the landlord
and his wife not having been able to procure proper food, in
consequence of the damage done to the stoves. Neighbourly
assistance has, however, been forthcoming.

Adjoining the Clarendon stands (so far) three cottages, the
lower two being completely parted. The gardens in this
neighbourhood are also in a terrible condition. While inspecting
the Clarendon Inn and adjacent cottages you stand on Brewer's Hill,
a much frequented road leading to Shorncliffe Camp. Almost
exactly half-way up this Hill a spacious gap in the path occurred, and
for some time the water from a broken drainpipe rushed with great
violence towards the sea. Men have been at work here since
Sunday, and the roadway is now partially restored.

Descending Brewer's Hill and turning again to the left Castle
House is brought to view. This house was occupied by Mr. Mark
Judge, a gentleman of influence, who since the catastrophe has
come prominently and worthily forward in the interests of the
sufferers. The east wall of this residence is parted in the centre, and
the ceilings and floors are in a state bordering on collapse. On the
left of Castle House stands Prospect Place, consisting of five houses,
each being more or less damaged, and, like the others, deserted.
Three other smaller houses at the rear of Prospect Place are in a
similar condition. In a garden immediately at the rear of the houses
referred to above the visitor will be surprised at the sight of
greenhouses and vineries fallen and falling, flower beds upheaved,
and stone steps and palings lying in startling confusion. This garden
is also the property of Tavenor Bros.

Retracing your steps and bearing to the left you reach Farleigh
House, which, though considerably damaged inside and out, has
been purchased since the disaster by Mr. J. J. Jones, of Beach
Rocks.  On the left of Farleigh House you enter the gates of
Encombe, the property of Miss Reilly, by whose kindness visitors
have been enabled—by paying sixpence at the gates—to witness
some of the most strange and serious results of the Landslip. The
money paid for admission is added to the Relief Fund, and it may
with satisfaction be chronicled that during the first four days the
grounds were thus opened to the public nearly one hundred
pounds were in this way collected.
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DAY OUT OF LONDON

First in an .occasional series

Sandgate Castle

Y idea of a day off is to

spend it in pursuit of

the ordinary and humdrum,

My idea of the ultimate in

this respect is to wander in

brick-built streets in places
like East Ham.

Here | can elude the feel-
ing of collapse in a low-toned
atmosphere of terraced
houses, disused non-conform-
ist chapels and betting shops;
here, at little cafes, | can
have chips with everything
and chrome-yellow jam tarts.

However, | realise that
others may prefer a day out
of town — a matter of a
few hours, easily arranged.
Nothing can be simpler from
London.

For few of the diversions
of Victorian London were
more agreeable -than going
down to Gravesend by the
steam packet from the Pool
on a Saturday morning in
summer.

Dickens, in ‘‘ Boz,” des-
cribes the trip in his charac-
teristic, easy style: the
people who lost their baggage
finding it, lost their
seats; the knowing ones who
produced telescopes and broke
out into nautical terms; the

season-ticket holders with
families at Gravesend.
At that time, it was

esteemed as a minor watering
place for the middle classes,
a sort of cross between
Greenwich and Margate. The
town is still recognisable as
such: much Regency and
early Victorian architecture
survives, giving, with the

older clapboarded houses, a_

special character, one that
makes Gravesend right for an
unusual atmospheric day off.

From the pier you can see

By Geoffrey Fletcher

what the Victorians saw as
they disembarked from the
paddle boats: a Regency
brick terrace on one hand
and the picturesque timbered
pub, The Three Daws, on the
other. In front are ancient
houses and, over them, the
spire of the Georgian 'parish
church, where Princess Poca-
hontas, an Indian maid who
was the first North American
Christian, was buried in 1617,

Along the waterfront is
another church, a little Vic-
torian chapel for mariners,
and next to it the Clarendon
Royal Hotel, all ship-shape
and Bristol fashion. | stayed
there in 1950, after return-
ing from the anniversary cele-
brations at Dunkirk, in a tug
boat that got stuck on the
Goodwin Sands, and very glad
I was to sample its hospitality.

There are a good many
smaller pubs in this most in-
teresting town — The British
Tar near the Jubilee clock
tower and The Trocadero in
Windmill Street, still with its
‘“ Bottle and Jug Depart-
ment.”

Another, and unspoilt, ren-
dezvous for an away-day is
Sandgate, with its long
pebbly beach, High Street of
interesting shops, including
antique shops, and Sandgate
Castle, a Tudor fortification

~ rebuilt as part of the Mar-

against the
invasion by

tello defences
threat of
Napoleon.

To get to Sandgate, take
the Folkestone train from
Waterloo and, at Folkestone
bus station, take a No. 10 or
No. 105 bus to Sandgate.

+ Eat either at the little Wel-

Drawing: Ceoffrey Fletcher

'COMING DOWN TO KENT

lington Hotel, just off the
promenade, for just under £1,
or at Wendy’s Café in the
main street.

Sandgate is exactly right
for a restful day off : a walk
or a book on the beach, with
a huddle in the curio shops
thrown in.

I am so prejudiced in
favour of Tunbridge Wells
that | cannot write anything

objective about it : I think .

there are few things more
agreeable than a stroll under
the elm trees on the Pantiles.

Tunbridge Wells, elegant
and civilised, is the spa for
Londoners. I am mad on

spas, and never go to the
Wells without taking the
waters — both on the spot,

and then home with me.

sit under _the
and have

You can
Regency canopy,
your iron water at a little
table above the spring,
bubbling in its marble basin,
and watch the world of the
Pantiles, wonderfully un-
1973, go by.

You can lunch at one of
the pubs or restaurants, such
as the Steak House, on the
Pantiles, and afterwards
either wander over the com-
mon or infiltrate the town.

Visit, the 17th-century

. church of King Charles the

Martyr, Hall’s second-hand
bookshop almost next to it,
and the villas by Decimus
Burton around Calverly Park.

Rarest of all, in the High
Street, is the only surviving
Victorian cigar divan known
to me — tobacco and cigars
at the front, and behind it
a small room where you can
drink wines, beers and spirits
in a completely 19th-century
setting.

Pe
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Sandgate and its
good old days

DAYS when Sandgate was
prosperous ang flourished
with its own railway line,
fire brigade and lifeboat ser-
vice were remembered last
week. b

Chichester Hall, Sandgate
High Street, was packed for
a journey back to the late
Victorian period by Mrs Ann
Nevill.

Her talk touched on many
aspects of Sandgate life in
the “good old days.”

The talk, organised by the
Sandgate Society, dealt-with
the village and its environ-

mernt plu§ its “personalitxes” :

topics dealt  with
were the local school, En-
brook House and its grounds,
the voluntary fire brigade
service and the old railway
line.

The next event on the
society’s programme is a
Christmas wine evening on
Wednesday, December 8.

® Mrs Nevill gave a simi-
lar talk to members of
Hythe’s Civic Society at the
Canon Newman Hall, Dental
Street, Hythe, omn Thumday

evening.

Fay’s bid

HEAD receptionist at Hythe’s
Hotel Imperial Fay Har-
greaves could become the
Hotel and Catering. Benevo-
lent Assocxatlon’s new per-
sonality girl.

Fay has rea.ched the final
of the 1982 Catering Prin-
cess contest, staged by the
association.

J . o L T -
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EARLY SANDGATE z 3
now instead of 3 houses only, a sizeable village

Bust b& the Castle, jumble of workmen's cottages, large boat <
building shed, and beach covered with timber, bhuts for drying

hets as at Hastings. Activities 66 Fabian Clayton Wilson, came

to S. in 1773, took a series of leases from Lord R. of land

rounds Castle Green to erect hou ses for wggﬁ%én%rrgﬁgégﬁ%qding

722

of caryying up to 200 men - must have been laundhed from beach Jﬁkﬁfég
commissioned ships from v. small dockwymards where other budiness

carried on. Thames yards the biggest at Woolwich and Deptford igz;éﬂA
o e

y mard, built ships for the American Revolutionary War, cabable

on fine day. GSeems extraordina;xivb¥g room very small and Gvmte.
S B e Ve

\

4]

then Chatham and Sheernes, Portsmoutl, Plymouthp Bristol, Dover
small places such as Sandwich, Shoreham and Whitby and Sandgate.
Between 1771 and 85, 7 28 gun frigates were built and 4 smaller

vessels, besides privateers and vessels for trading purposes.

Z

Tradition carried on by Graves, old black boathouse at

bottom of R. Cliff, he built cutters, small yachts, sailing
luggers and rowing galleys.

Closely connected, twin trades of smuggling and fishing;
J0h20?8§e§h has left account - he was born in S. 1817, father

~
P
a sxx¥wx who served in the Peninsular Wars on pension, mother é@fV”u}/

village schoolmistress. Left several vignettes of life in S. ‘gbfﬁa

(he emigrated to America in 1829, after working on a farm
ended up in New York, and sent for his mother and sister. He
lost his job and his mother died in a garret, lacking food
and warmith. He took to the bottle, and became an actor,
later took pledge and became temperance speaker, audiences
running into thousands; He returned to S. later to open
Gough temperance coffee tavern, his coach drawn by men not
horses and saw his‘birthplace, old schoolfeiends and mother's
old scholars and lecturd in the schoolhouse. D. 1886.
S. he said ideally adapted by its position for smuggling.
————

Martello towers used as accommodation for man o war's men,
pacing beach with pistols andcutlesses. Smugglers sink the
dilks, laces, brandy and tea in watertight barrels, leaving
marker bugy, return with some fish, then go out at night to

get them, oars muffled, no lights in sts, one flash the signal.
for unloading. Fishmrman to be arrested with tea in bosts ,

revenue man cut down by a dozen knewed. no one could saywho

murdered him. False names.

Fleur de Lis haunt of smugglers, pulled down 1881.
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EARLY SANDGATE

Apart from fishermen, boatbuilders and smugglers, next
reason for érowth, existence of Camp. 230 acres had been
bought by the war Dept. on the hills and here for 3 years
from 1802 Gen. Sir John Moore trained the famous light
Brigade "the finest in respect of discipline that ever

was formed in England." He applied an intelligent and
hamane mind to the art. of warfare, avoiding harsh
punishments, sharing theixmggégals and racing them up

the hill from Sandgate to Shorncliffe, encouraging to leave
the pothouses there for swimming and sport, dancing and
music. - Above all, he trained them ammost as guerillas, to
harass the enemy in small bodies with accurate fire, fto
be prepared for action at all times, and to avoid the
rigidity of fixed lines of battle firing to order like
machines in favour of fast moving sharpshooters,
attacking the enemy from unempected angles.

G o e T R TR T s TSR
Misses Podevin's Marine Hotel. He bought his mother

and sister to ssay at York Cottage. It was at S. that he came
galloping back from a visit to Dungeness where he was inspecting

defences, the signal for invasion (wrongly) having been given.

" Clﬂ&é F}Tth = ﬂnwoﬁZZ/
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EARLY SANDGATE

Back down Military Hill into Broadway, line of houses mostly
Bmall weatherboarded cottages, sign of 'Military Tailor' 3rd
element of growth, S's sheltered situationjsmall and select

watering places, had bathing machines, hot and cold sea

.

water baths, smarter than Fne. because of the military. MNrs. 7 sldse
Siddons 'There are little neat lodgings and good wholesome

food - they would not suit a great Countess but a little 5:5"19

great actress is more easily accommodated." ®William e
Wilberforce, followed by & swarm of evangelical clergymen, Nueiizz:
stayed several summers with his family, and bewailed the lack gbykﬂiﬂ
of a church - ohly Wesleyan Chapel; yéung\;ZQTxﬁnﬁrﬂﬁithmpfa Oahr=X
and Duchess of Kent (Royal Kent), vogue for sea bathing, cure

for deéséases inc. ecrofula. Under Fne's control, nnmade roads

no street lighting. Lord Damnley aquired the Enbrook estate Vh&CL>
and built a handsome house and garden in 1806 - he gave the‘gebub |
land and built a small Chapel in 1822, designed by George C%f:Z:;i;
Stanley Repton, son of Hamphrey Repton, who had designed ' Fﬁwvga
library at Cobham Hallof plestered brickwork with small

belfry. There was a school in 1814 in Wilberforce Rde,

this moved to a site beside the Castlein two rented buildings.

These were sold and a new school erected (architect Edward :
Govto who made mess of H.G.S. rebuilding) the land being given -

by Lord Radnor and funds for building apreated for by the

Minister of the Chapel, 3 rooms and a residence.(Still standing

at back of Sea Cadets ) 1846

There were daily coaches to London, Hastings and Brighton, or

Dover. J.B.G.'s account of coach arrival: the coachman and

guard in their scarlet livery, the shining spirited horses, ESL“AQ :

the sound of their feet on the hard road, the dogs barking -5
as the guard sounds a merry tune on his bucle and reorle (7
throwing up their windows to see the coach — it is ahmost -

the perfection of travel. He tells us also of the faipy the

main street lined with booths, the array of toys and ginerbread,

the pig faced lady and 2 headed calf, Ingy on his elephant,

shows, swings, merry go rounds, donkey races, conjurer's bookh,
haglequin and columbine, drums, fifes, panny whisles and bag

pipes all playing together. PURDAYS.library, started 1799, [ ;1L*L
reading room and daily newspapers, musical entertainments,

postmaster, better than Fre.

|
{

P




: fofzéf‘bédiigéé“Lané“s on 8. Hill some handsome houses . g¢dipr

the Bill

: of%léagﬁﬁgbh:uses‘and houses to rent - past Sandgate Plain to

building. Road better, 5. houses of wood replaced by brick. “€%1ﬁ?”gg7 E
Whole of old church, except sanctuary, has been pulled down. Qk#fp, :
New one double in size, had 893 sittings, not Se pretty, S.3. Teulon

HEZAX LR AREUIAA XK EXARESEXANL New hotels have replaced

old inns, and new shops: 3 linen drapers, 5 milliners,

2 fishmongers, 4 greengrocers, 3 hairdressefé, 4 houseagents, e
4 bakers, 5 boot and shoe makers, 4 butchers, 6 beershops,

(o)

7 grocers, 2 chemists, 6 carpenters and a collector in income;ﬂz)?”s‘

(
=Y
1 baker, 2 butchers but something like 27/3gntique businesses.) P’

RNREXYXX  Past the toll gate, kept by Barvis, surley old _ |

tax. (now 2 grocers, 1 fishmonger, 1 grenngrocer, 1 chemist

man with wooden leg, would lock gate at dusk retire early 19{%&@252:?

and fall into sound sleep. "Corpse'" wheeled through in ‘ f;ﬂb‘u:) 5
handeart "Lord will reward thee, Jarvis.™ Rowoved 1277 g3 &
¢ Vine . :
Enbrock house pulled down, noApdebdume, to be replaced by new : 1;,g o
& seso

house, also Teulon, occ. Sir John Bligh%, 2nd son of 4th Earl, bt
. . % - 9 . ‘W
sister married Rev. John Brownlow, ®. Vicar. He was in the

- S . B ; ; otle Z
Tiplomatic Service and Eng's envoy at Hanover, retired to S. En¥0

S
His only d. married Earl of Chichester, Countess (hence s Cilq
33
Chichester Hall.* Enbrook not so used by townspeople as 2, uwDL'(g

Encombe. _‘____;:>

PURLEYS. 1865. MNiss Purday had taken over and was brrkrupt and

a fund pu t on foot to provide here with small annuity. One con-
tributor said "If I send any money to Miss Burday herself, her kind
heart may be tmepted to give to those whom she finds more in want
than herself." Contents of sale - mxpzgmixhxx crochet hooks, writing
paper, pencil cases, combs etc. and 5,000 volumes. Serious reading
Baptist and eveangelical papers, Scott, Dickens, Byron, CGibbon,
sermons and "Adventures of a Ladies' Maid", "A MonkR and Married

Man", "A Woman's love" etc.

PRI | CLINVORIYSRNIE T vyt ne L CORBRLreent v of a8 TR B, T

Inc. no §f\visE23;;*:—§T_;§_;—;;§§§EEEEf?gg;ghva1ids. 0la
black bdathouse. A stay in S. a cure for evew ill (George
Moseley, Dispensary Su rgeon). yuiet amusements, no balls,
boating botany reading, nature to take its course.cures TB "
scrofula, temperature compared with Auckland, Siena or Cadiz, . =
barometrié pressure with Rome or Naples. Cases at dispensary
analysed, 6 cases of cholera 2 of leprosey, 26 of BB in 4

years, and these were visitors. ﬁ
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wet and offensive, no provision for surface draining and flooding

e & 1

EARLY SANDGATE i

To end of village, then on beach, awful smell. What lay beneath 5:%”nwskj
surface? "Report to the General Bd. of Health on a preliminary

enquiry into the sewerage, drainage, water supply and sanitary

condition of the inhabitants of the twon of S." issued under

Public Health Act by Thos. Rammell. Large towns set up missing
authorities to prevent dimase via better drains and water supply,

paving and lighting. S. a model of larg e village (inspccted by

E. Chadwick.} S. proba. not untypical. Meeting at New Inn,

Rev. Qgghiggl Incumbent of Chapel, Mary Graves, lodging jouse keeper,sk;b
Bwadfield Jenner, Chemist, Wm. Pledge, grocer, Ed. Rider and Thos.
Jordan, private schoolmasters. Describes town, one main st., 3.
sheltered, lie of land for drainage andsewers, o0ld wooden houses -giiiyf
and new stucco, barracks from last war, pop. 1,200 growing at 3% (jtj
No rates levied, no body, but streets watered, policeman provided é;;¢wL
at £23, but only 6/- remains, dispensary. DRAINS. 1. Cesspools

in beach, filled with large stones, blew up, emptied once or twice
yearly. 2. Drdmas discharging on beach above high water. 3. TuBs
emptied into sea. Evidence as to smells, fevers and diahorriea,

Rev. Gambier said 3 families in train, 2 went to Fne. 1 to Dover. 4
Committee of householder found 13 drains discharging on beach, :
60 houses having only tubs, pails or boxes, 2 in kitchen and 1 -

served 6 families, no refuse disposal or of the leav ngs of 23

dunghills, 14 piggeries and 4 slaughterhouses, poor in stable yards,

frequent. WATER; from wells cd. be polluted, or small w. works
at undercliff, supplied 56 houses. In fact there was plenty of f
water, also at Encombe. One w. works pipe serving cottages had .

soapsuds coming out of it. PAVEMENTS. Turnpike rd. maintained

a4

by trustees, mu ddy in winter, dusty in summer, no footpaths except
private ones. LIGHTING. None. Encouragement to immorality.
Anseers - to rdbrm boundaries from Military Canal to S. Hallj;

Local Board to be consstituted; every town to have paxiped water
and drains in kitchen and W.C.s. (cost £1,700) Drains - to g0

right out to sea, every house to have 3 drains (cheaper than

cesspools) loans raised for 30 years at 5% interest. -
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SANDGATE. Local Board, Cholera outbreak, dispensary.
Minutes - only a few objectors on expense grounds. Rev. Gambéer
lst Chairman, Rev. R. Wakefield, Sir Ch. Keyes etc. Slow progress
towards betters, fines on those who did not clear pigstyes. Thos.
Rammell, Inépector of nuisances. Clerk at £20 pa. New mater supply,
clear and sparkling, looked after as carefully as wine merchant does
wine. Fne. W. Co. for part of village; no constant suprly, sometimes
only 2 houps daily. Rates collected, gas on via Fne. Gas Co., yards
and courts paved, rain water channelled, scavenger appointed (not

4
always attentive). Mr. Valyer reported for not clearing manure:

% 3 o e | R S S & R o Bt e e R . N e 1L R,
compalaints from residents, Miss Podevin said gent had bathed from

boct to annoyance of residents, lamps not lighted, by 1853 rew drains
constructed, help given to small householders to pay for them, so

far had cost only £2,850. 28 tubs used for privies remowmed, 101
cesspools filled inl By 1860 Honeywood springs bought for extra
water. Read election describption.

Aug. 54 a month of close, stagnant oppressive atmosphere, meat became
tainted, smells lingering, vegetable crops destroyed by blight, no 5u)14
cool sea breezes. CHOLERA. “utumn, 48 cases fatal, 45 recovered,
nearly 1 in 10. Another report made to see what had gone wrong,

su pply of water anyalysed. 31% S. W.Ws., 29% well or pump water,

12% Fne. Ws. Water from Shorncliffe hillside and Castle Hole had

run out in su mmer and was very brackish. Pipes used for distribution
had run alongside old cess pools, not used but full of sewer gas.

A cross section died, 11 visitors, Mr. Flisher of Fleur de Lis,

surgeon's assistant, servants, labourers, drapers boy, etc. Mrs. Neville,

laundress. Real culprits new drains, some higher than spécified, and
on inadequate foundations, some jointed with clay, some blocked

with shingle, some pmipes too small. Ld. R.'s ses wall built to
prevent sea water percolating into wells, kept in seepage from disused
cesspools.

There was a small Dispensary for the poor - to relieve gratuitously
the suffering and industrious poor with medical advice and medecines
those who do not receive more than 2/- per week per head. Not servants.
Subscribers could recommend patients acc. to amount of subscriptions.
Doctor would visit, or surgery held 1 pm. daily, bring own bottles.
Various suggestions for a hospital, infact James Morris offered

a thousand pounds in 1871, and it was generally though a good idea,

bu t never came about. When Fne. was at loggerheads with S. over
boundary'&uestion, it refused to take patients in isolation hosp.

and hosp. suggested in Cheriton. but no one outside S.'s boundaries,

wished to take infectious S. patients. -~¥?>

AR« My 82 Shgptny S AL T 7 )
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: é&Sﬁ;ﬁ% Ko-cle for sea air. Rebuilt and op8nsd By‘Lady WallSLy CX??@%%iﬁgségép’
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SANDGATE s"’ Whe 1 e
i n the 1880s Mr. John James Jones came to Sandgate and
fgi?ﬁ;é’ bought large marine residence - director of the London

Samaritan Soc. used to bring down children from slums

descriptions of cases BUT not all it seemed. Truth accused

him of pocketing funds "I could not advise anyone to send him

money for any purposes." He kzx did arouse gt. opposition gwiyl

in 5. accused the local board of extravagaince and brought
down inflectious cases éhffering from Bipthereia, ®% TB and
various skin déseases, letting off the same housés in the
summer to visitors. At one time he woned 23 houses in Sx.
and threatened to buy up half the house broperty on the
market at low prices. Great local feeling against him -
Florence Warden the novelist left. He wught a party of
children on the beach, making faces at his neighbour acc.

to Mr. James, and when they next met in the High St. a

outstanding feat. A large four rigged ship was travelling

JEQLtaLﬁhilw from London to Sydney, got blown on to_rocks at Seabrook.

i S

Some of crew tried to swim ashore and were drownéd. The rest
#f took refuge on the miz-en mast and they sat in the rigging,

boat had sunk. When dawn came, they could see the shoreg and

: : -
c§&*P€&( make out the colour of ladies' dresses. Rockets launched but €§

fell short. Hythe life boat capsided, littlestone and Dover

cd. not be laundhed. 7 pm. wind abated and §. boat launched
3STR Sliﬁﬁ%@ef{*"“%%e%}t%og%é e eﬁr%ﬁla’gél}%f‘ &E1) “voluntesrs.
Reahced boat and numbesd and frozen crew fell into boat like so

many bees, regardless of water in bobvtom. Taken to Harbour and

Leckies Rest. baths, bed and food, cheer upon cheer rent the air.
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fight was started with them scrgtching and kicking in the -
S ga tter. He died in 1904, but house had been taken over
! by Gvmt. to house troops from S. African War who arrived
S:—‘%f% LB J t R v o
_ Aﬂ%ﬂ.‘ yellow and ill - they had no money in hozxptal and fund set ‘
: #
: on foot to provided them with tobacco money.
% , /‘”’h?éd_Also blamed on Mr. Jones and cheap day fares from SERCO, was
i F £ @
¢ J ")z ! duflux of awfnl trippers and hotels catering for beafifeast & 249
? {igeétggv1b4é;<g£ parties of workmen. They undressed on the beach, got drunk @wV’V““WWb
‘ 97
r and one old lady asked Sir Charles Ruseell to dance a Jig i
with her. §%<¢¢4
: : =3 . S 0B
Nov.14. 91 However, Mr. J.J. helped to launéh lifeboat on its most QN%’mL
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S. Lifeboaat had been given by Hannah de Rothschild, called

Mayer de Rothschild in memory of her father (richest heiress

in Eng.) m. Lord Rosebery. Arrived 1875 and attended 2 timber
ships driven ashore at Littlestone, the Grosser Kurfurst (&
Gerﬁan battleships colliding with great loss of lifel, Plassey
wrecked ne. boathouse and crew saved. Benvenue. In the end
launching because of wreck of sea defences and boat moved to
Hythe - house called Goose Cathegral, became a cafe, pulled
down for filling station.

The Benvenue had to be blown up, as it was a danger to shipping
at low water and wreck seen at low water 2nd, lst the Calypso.
1%?T gﬁe%aﬁelgymee %ﬁgaggdf%gggegyo%lggg ﬁ01tﬁ ceilings etc.
Done by Trinity House engineers, with series of small charges.
On Sat. March 4tﬁ9%% 7 pm. there was a sound c¢f rumbling and /?

falling masonry. Ihhabitants rushed into street- terrible

lahdslip %® Chapel St. (Widberforce Rd.) to Military Hospital

area of lm. completely devastated; buildings rent from top to
bottom, floors heaved up, Encombe carriage drive dropped several
feet. No loss of life. UGowds of skXightseers arrived, slight
amount of subsidence on Sunday and Mond. Thié was truly disaster
on a national scale. 70 houses affected, 24 had to be pulled
down. Homeless put up at Nat. Schs. and Coffee Tavern. Immediate
reaction that this was due to blowing up of Benvenue, Trinity

Hse. should be held repponsible. Rev. R. Wakefield offered rich
living elsewhere, glad he had not yet taken it. Meeting of local
Bd. held and report commissioned. Also Nat. Disaster Fund opened

with 2,000 contributions from all over Eng. and overseas, servants

o
visitors etc. Trinity House s$aid they had used small charges. 5

REPORTS: One to local Board, one to local Gvmt. Boa®d, article o
in Nature, reabhed roughly the same conelusions: whole area liable
to landslip, had been landslides bwéween Rlwy Tunnel and Stutfall
Castle. The hg5df¥§e£h98§sigeggr%ging on soft S. beds, soff water
retaining clay, and underneath limestone. There had been abnormal
amount of rain and very low tide and dipp ery clay simply slid
forwards. (R. Cliff same conds. but not so much collecting ground
for water.) Conclusion, that adeguate drainage would greatly
reduce risk of repetition £8,000 had been collected and this was
rartly spent on new drainage, partly on house repairz and assistance
to the homeless. As often happens with relief funds, there was

some dissent over actual distributions.
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